## Department of State Division of Publications

312 Rosa L. Parks Ave., 8th Floor, Snodgrass/TN Tower

Nashville, TN 37243 Phone: 615-741-2650

Email: publications.information@tn.gov

## For Department of State Use Only

Sequence Number:

03-26-21

Rule ID(s):

9474-9476

File Date:

3/15/2021

Effective Date:

6/13/2021

# Rulemaking Hearing Rule(s) Filing Form

Rulemaking Hearing Rules are rules filed after and as a result of a rulemaking hearing (Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-5-205).

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-5-229, any new fee or fee increase promulgated by state agency rule shall take effect on July 1, following the expiration of the ninety (90) day period as provided in § 4-5-207. This section shall not apply to rules that implement new fees or fee increases that are promulgated as emergency rules pursuant to § 4-5-208(a) and to subsequent rules that make permanent such emergency rules, as amended during the rulemaking process. In addition, this section shall not apply to state agencies that did not, during the preceding two (2) fiscal years, collect fees in an amount sufficient to pay the cost of operating the board, commission or entity in accordance with § 4-29-

Agency/Board/Commission:	Tennessee Board of Cosmetology and Barber Examiners
Division:	Department of Commerce & Insurance
Contact Person:	Hugh Cross, Assistant General Counsel
Address:	500 James Robertson Parkway
Zip:	37243
Phone:	(615) 741-3072
	Hugh.Cross@TN.gov

## Revision Type (check all that apply):

		- 6
X	Amendmer	1
/\	AITICITATION	16

New

Repeal

Rule(s) (ALL chapters and rules contained in filing must be listed here. If needed, copy and paste additional tables to accommodate multiple chapters. Please make sure that ALL new rule and repealed rule numbers are listed in the chart below. Please enter only ONE Rule Number/Rule Title per row.)

<b>Chapter Number</b>	Chapter Title
0200-01	Rules of the Barber Board
Rule Number	Rule Title
0200-0101	Requirements for School License
0200-0102	Curriculum
0200-0105	Posting of Licenses
0200-0107	Equipment and Location Requirements for Barber Shops
0200-0112	Inspections
0200-0114	Teacher Training Programs
0200-0115	Student Kits

<b>Chapter Number</b>	Chapter Title
0440-01	Licensing
Rule Number	Rule Title
0440-0101	Requirements for School License
0440-0102	Change of School Ownership and Relocation
0440-0107	Student Kits
0440-0111	Teacher Training Programs
0440-0115	Practice By Instructor

Chapter Number	Chapter Title
0440-02	Sanitary Rules
Rule Number	Rule Title
0440-0207	Equipment

Place substance of rules and other info here. Please be sure to include a detailed explanation of the changes being made to the listed rule(s). Statutory authority must be given for each rule change. For information on formatting rules go to

https://sos.tn.gov/products/division-publications/rulemaking-guidelines.

## Chapter 0200-01 Rules of the Barber Board

#### Amendments

The title of Chapter 0200-01 "Rules of the Barber Board" is amended by deleting the title and substituting the following so that as amended the title shall read:

## Licensing

The Table of Contents for Chapter 0200-01 is amended by redesignating 0200-01-.14 "Teacher Training Programs" as "Instructor-training Programs" so that, as amended, the Table of Contents shall read:

#### Table of Contents

0200-0101 Requirements for School License	0200-0111 Fees
0200-0102 Curriculum	0200-0112 Inspections
0200-0103 Transcripts	0200-0113 License Qualifications
0200-0104 Applications for Examination	0200-0114 Instructor-training Programs
0200-0105 Posting of Licenses	0200-0115 Student Kits
0200-0106 Expiration of Certificates of Registration	0200-0116 Demonstrations
0200-0107 Equipment and Location Requirements	0200-0117 Alcoholic Beverages
0200-0108 Educational Equivalent	0200-0118 Civil Penalties
0200-0109 Examinations	0200-0119 Mobile Shops
0200-0110 Original License Fee	0200-0120 Residential Barber Services

Rule 0200-01-.01 Requirements for School License is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) The Board of Cosmetology and Barber Examiners will not approve an application for a new school, change of ownership or change of location of a school of barbering unless the school is equipped with at least the following:
  - (a) A minimum of one (1) working restroom;
  - (b) One (1) work station with adjustable chair per student working on the clinic floor, with a minimum of fifteen (15) stations;
  - (c) Five (5) shampoo basins adequately spaced with hot and cold running water;
  - (d) Two (2) manicure stations;
  - (e) Two (2) hooded dryers;
  - (f) One (1) straight chair in the theory classroom for each student attending class;
  - (g) One (1) wet disinfectant at each student work station;
  - (h) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
  - (i) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (i) One (1) covered trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (k) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;

- (I) Posted sign stating that all barber services are performed by students;
- (m) One (1) dry sanitary compartment at each student work station;
- (n) A time sheet/time clock:
- (o) One (1) blood exposure kit; and
- (p) One (1) labeled sharps container at each student work station for biohazard material removal.
- (2) A proposed floor plan must be submitted to and approved by the Board before:
  - (a) Issuance of a license to operate a new barber school;
  - (b) Issuance of a license to operate a barber school whose ownership has changed;
  - (c) Reissuance of a license to operate a relocated barber school; or
  - (d) Issuance of a license to operate a branch of an existing school at a new location, which shall be considered a new school for purposes of this rule and shall remain closed to the public until it is inspected and approved by the Board to open.
- (3) The floor plan shall provide for and the school shall contain, at least sixteen hundred square feet (1600 sq. ft.) of instructional floor space, including an enclosed classroom for theory instruction. The building shall meet all applicable fire and building regulations prescribed by state or local government.
- (4) The Board shall have the authority to approve a school without a restroom facility located therein if the school is located within a mall, strip shopping center, or other commercial property and the school owner can demonstrate shared public restroom facilities are standard for the location.
- (5) The requirements of the school for enrollment of students are:
  - (a) Every barber school shall maintain documentation in each student's file which evidences age and education which meets eligibility requirements for enrollment;
  - (b) Every enrollment of a student in a barber school shall be evidenced by a written enrollment agreement, signed by both parties, which clearly details the rights and obligations of both parties; and
  - (c) The school shall furnish to the student an executed copy of the enrollment agreement and maintain a copy of the agreement in the student's file.
  - (d) Full-time barber school students shall be defined as students enrolled in school for at least twenty-five (25) hours per week and part-time barber school students shall be defined as students enrolled in school for at least fifteen (15) hours per week.
- (6) Every student enrollment agreement shall:
  - (a) Be signed and dated by the student and an authorized representative of the school;
  - (b) Specify the number of clock hours in the course of instruction and an approximate number of weeks or months required for completion;
  - (c) Identify all costs and charges which the student must bear;
  - (d) Indicate any grounds for termination of a student by the school;
  - (e) State in clear and understandable language the school's refund policy;

- (f) List any special conditions or requirements for graduation; and
- (g) Contain an acknowledgment that the student has read and understands the agreement before making any payment thereunder.
- (7) All documentation and enrollment agreements required under this rule shall be available for inspection by members or inspectors of the Board during business hours.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-3-122, 62-3-123, and 62-3-128.

0200-01-.02 Curriculum is amended by deleting the text of paragraph (3) of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended paragraph (3) shall read:

- (3) The barber instructor-training program curriculum shall consist of the following:
  - (a) Lesson Planning:

Course outlining and development Lesson planning and motivation Record keeping Testing Grading

Required Total: 100 Hours

(b) General:

Book Knowledge Teaching Techniques Visual Aid Equipment Classroom Management Student Motivation Product Knowledge State Laws

Required Total: 100 Hours

(c) Physical:

Permanent Waving
Relaxers
Shampooing
Nail Care
Facials
Hair Coloring/Lightening
Haircutting
Clinic Floor Management

Required Total: 100 Hours

Total Hours: 300 Hours

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-3-105, 62-3-123, and 62-3-128.

0200-01-.05 Posting of Licenses is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

(1) The Board shall be notified within ten (10) days of the effective date of any change in ownership of a barber shop, barber school or college.

- (2) All certificates of registration issued to master barbers, and technicians must be posted at the station where the registrant works, and shall not be laminated.
- (3) All certificates of registration issued to barber shops, barber schools or colleges, and barber instructors must be conspicuously posted on the premises and shall not be laminated.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-3-118 and 62-3-128.

0200-01-.07 Equipment and Location Requirements for Barber Shops is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) Every barber shop shall be equipped with at least:
  - (a) One (1) shampoo bowl with hot and cold running water and a chair;
  - (b) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
  - (c) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (d) One (1) dry sanitary compartment per station;
  - (e) One (1) work station and mirror for each operator;
  - (f) One (1) covered container for trash, maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (g) One (1) working restroom;
  - (h) One (1) wet disinfectant solution container per barber chair;
  - (i) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer; and
  - (j) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station.
- (2) Residential shops must maintain a separate entrance without requiring passage through any portion of a private residence. Separate restroom facilities must be provided apart from the living quarters.
- (3) Unless otherwise licensed as a mobile shop, a barber shop located in a mobile home or mobile unit will not be approved unless it is placed on a permanent foundation or otherwise rendered immobile.
- (4) The Board shall have the authority to approve a shop without a restroom facility located therein if the shop is located within a mall, strip shopping center, or other commercial property and the shop owner can demonstrate shared public restroom facilities are standard for the location.
- (5) Laundry work may be performed on the premises of an establishment only:
  - (a) In an area not frequented by the general public nor used for instruction, rest or study by students;
  - (b) With workable equipment which has hot and cold water; and
  - (c) Bleach and detergent must be used.
- (6) Every shop shall contain sufficient equipment to enable it to perform all services offered competently and efficiently. All equipment must be in working order.
- (7) Every barber providing residential barber services pursuant to T.C.A. § 62-3-135 shall have a kit consisting of at least the following materials at all times when providing services in residences:
  - (a) One (1) enclosed and labeled container with clean towels separated from other

equipment;

- (b) One (1) enclosed and labeled container solely for soiled towels:
- (c) One (1) shampoo cape;
- (d) One (1) chair cloth;
- (e) Trash bags;
- (f) One (1) leak tight container for wet disinfectant solution;
- (g) One (1) container of wet disinfectant solution;
- (h) One (1) aerosol spray disinfectant for clippers;
- (i) One (1) portable ultraviolet sanitizer;
- (j) One (1) blood exposure kit;
- (k) Extra disposable gloves;
- (I) One (1) bottle of alcohol;
- (m) Hand sanitizer;
- (n) Cotton balls;
- (o) Cotton swabs;
- (p) One (1) sharps container for biohazard material removal;
- (q) Neck strips; and
- (r) A portable shampoo bowl, if required under Paragraph (8).
- (8) A portable shampoo bowl shall only be required when a barber is providing services in a residence involving removal of chemicals, including, but not limited to, color, permanents, relaxers and conditioners. If a barber intends to provide such services, the portable shampoo bowl shall be available for inspection prior to the issuance of the residential barber certificate. If a barber decides to provide such services after issuance of the residential barber certificate, the barber shall be obligated to notify the board and obtain a new equipment inspection at the barber's expense.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-3-109, 62-3-113, 62-3-128, and 62-3-135.

0200-01-.12 Inspections is amended by adding paragraph (4) so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) Members or inspectors of the Board shall be accorded access to each establishment for the purpose of conducting any inspections authorized by law.
- (2) The results of any inspection of an establishment may be reduced to a grade or rating on a form prescribed by the Board. Such form shall be furnished to the establishment and posted in a conspicuous place therein. This form must be signed personally, by either the school owner, school manager, shop owner or shop manager and a Board member/inspector.
- (3) Upon receipt of an application for a new or relocated barber establishment which will be located in an existing, licensed cosmetology shop, the barber shop may open for business prior to inspection. The shop application must be submitted immediately. Inspection will be conducted within ten (10) days of receipt of application.
- (4) Substantial changes to a school's physical location shall be deemed a relocation. A new license

for a relocated school shall be required following an inspection. Substantial changes include, but are not limited to, a significant increase or reduction in a school's square footage as well as changes to the floor plan, physical walls, and entry doors. The Board shall be notified in writing of any substantial changes no less than thirty (30) days prior to the changes being made.

Authority: T.C.A. § 62-3-128.

0200-01-.14 Teacher Training Programs is amended by changing the heading to "Instructor-training Programs" and deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) An application for approval to teach an instructor-training program in barbering for licensed barber instructors to obtain continuing credit shall include:
  - (a) A summary of education and experience of each instructor for the program;
  - (b) The scheduled dates for the program; and
  - (c) The proposed curriculum of the program.
- (2) The applying sponsor shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the board that the instructor-training program submitted for approval will:
  - (a) Contain at least sixteen (16) hours of actual instruction;
  - (b) Emphasize teaching methodology for its entire duration;
  - (c) Restrict the size of classes sufficiently to ensure adequate attention to all participants;
  - (d) Proceed for not more than two (2) hours without a break;
  - (e) Prohibit demonstrations or presentations for commercial purposes in classrooms.

    Training programs may not sell, take orders, or in any way promote a product; and
  - (f) Conform to professional standards as determined by the Board. This may be determined by, but not limited to, the following: fraud, unprofessional, immoral or dishonorable conduct, a violation of T.C.A. § 62-3-101, et. seq. or of any rules duly promulgated under this chapter, or failure to comply with a lawful order of the Board.
- (3) Any online, virtual, or electronic instructor-training program shall further demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Board that the instructor-training program submitted for approval does not allow one to skip through content and meets at least one (1) of the following qualifications:
  - (a) Streamed or real-time presentation that allows the submission of questions, group chat, or solicits responses from registrants through surveys, multiple choice questions, etc.;
  - (b) Requires a unique login; or
  - (c) Monitors registrant participation and includes a testing component that requires a passing grade in order to complete the program.
- (4) Promptly after the completion of an instructor-training program approved by the Board, the sponsor shall send to the Board a roster showing the names, social security numbers, and I.D. numbers of the persons who attended the program and the number of hours that such persons completed.
- (5) The sponsor shall provide an opportunity for the attendees to evaluate each class and the overall program. The original evaluations shall be forwarded to the office of the Board.
- (6) Continuing Credit for Licensed Instructors Attending Instructor-training Programs
  - (a) A licensed instructor shall complete at least sixteen (16) hours of actual instruction in

order to obtain continuing credit. A licensed instructor shall deduct any time in which the licensed instructor failed to attend the program from the amount of credit sought for attendance.

- (b) A licensed instructor may practice or teach only the discipline in which he or she is licensed; therefore, a licensed instructor may obtain credit only for an instructor-training program in the discipline in which he or she is licensed.
- (c) In order for a licensed instructor to obtain credit for taking an instructor-training course in a state other than the State of Tennessee, the licensed instructor shall obtain the Board's approval before taking the course by submitting a written request for approval to the Board no less than sixty (60) days before the licensed instructor intends to take the course. Such written request must include a copy of the curriculum.
- (d) A licensed instructor shall submit a request for an extension of time to complete the instructor-training requirements in writing along with proof showing a medical hardship, a death in the immediate family or entitlement to automatic renewal of the certificate of registration under T.C.A. § 62-3-120 prior to the expiration date of the instructor's license.
  - A licensed instructor who is not granted an extension prior to the expiration date of the certificate of registration and who fails to obtain the required number of instructor-training hours shall be denied renewal. The Executive Director shall have discretion to allow the licensed instructor up to one hundred eighty (180) additional days to submit instructor-training hours and renew the certificate of registration if a written request is made by the instructor within sixty (60) days following the expiration date of the certificate of registration and the licensed instructor demonstrates a medical hardship, shows a death in the immediate family, or shows entitlement to automatic renewal of the certificate of registration under T.C.A. § 62-3-120.
  - 2. If the licensed instructor fails to make a written request within sixty (60) days of the expiration date of the certificate of registration, but makes the request within three hundred sixty-five (365) days following the expiration date of the certificate of registration, the Board shall have the discretion to allow the instructor up to one hundred eighty (180) additional days to submit instructor-training if the licensed instructor can demonstrate a medical hardship, a death in the immediate family or entitlement to automatic renewal of the certificate of registration under T.C.A.§ 62-3-120.
- (e) A licensed instructor who fails to obtain the required number of instructor-training hours prior to the expiration date appearing on the certificate of registration and who is either not eligible for an extension or not granted an extension, shall not engage in any activity which requires an instructor's certificate of registration and shall be required to retake the instructor's examination, complete the instructor-training hours, and pay any applicable fees in order for the certificate of registration to be reinstated.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-3-120, 62-3-124, and 62-3-128.

0200-01-.15 Student Kits is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) Each student, with school assistance, shall be required to have a kit consisting of the following materials after one hundred (100) hours of enrollment in a master barber program:
  - (a) Four (4) taper combs;
  - (b) Four (4) styling combs;
  - (c) Four (4) picks;
  - (d) Two (2) vent-type brushes;

(e)	Two (2) styling brushes;
(f)	Six (6) duckbill clips;
(g)	Twelve (12) butterfly clips;
(h)	One (1) blow dryer;
(i)	One (1) curling iron;
(j)	Adjustable clippers;
(k)	T-edger/trimmer;
(I)	Straight razor and blades;
(m)	One (1) pair shears and one (1) pair blending shears;
(n)	One (1) pair snippers;
(0)	Three (3) orangewood sticks;
(p)	One (1) box of emery boards;
(p)	One (1) cuticle pusher;
(r)	One (1) finger bowl;
(s)	One (1) sanitizable file;
(t)	One (1) nail brush;
(u)	One (1) shampoo cape;
(v)	One (1) chair cloth;
(w)	One (1) theory book (electronic or hard copy);
(x)	One (1) workbook (electronic or hard copy);
(y)	A mannequin;
(z)	One (1) hand form and holder or two (2) fingers and holder;
(aa)	One (1) set of instructions to access online laws and rules;
(bb)	Twelve (12) perm rods;
(cc)	Two (2) color bowls; and
(dd)	Two (2) color brushes.
	tudent, with school assistance, shall be required to have a kit consisting of the following als after fifty (50) hours of enrollment in a barber technician program:
(a)	One (1) pair nippers;
(b)	Three (3) orangewood sticks;
(c)	One (1) box of emery boards;

(2)

- (d) One (1) cuticle pusher;
- (e) One (1) finger bowl;
- (f) One (1) sanitizable file;
- (g) One (1) nail brush;
- (h) One (1) chair cloth;
- (i) One (1) color applicator bottle or color bowl and brush;
- (j) Four (4) all-purpose combs;
- (k) One (1) shampoo cape;
- (I) Six (6) duckbill clips;
- (m) Twelve (12) butterfly clips;
- (n) One (1) theory book (electronic or hard copy);
- (o) One (1) workbook (electronic or hard copy);
- (p) One (1) set of instructions to access online laws and rules; and
- (q) One (1) hand form and holder or two (2) fingers and holder.
- (3) It shall be the responsibility of the student to maintain all materials in the kits.
- (4) Each school shall have disposable gloves and safety goggles available to all students.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-3-123 and 62-3-128.

## Chapter 0440-01 Licensing

#### **Amendments**

The Table of Contents for Chapter 0440-01 is amended by redesignating 0440-01-.09 "Examination Passing Scores and School Attendance Ratio" as "Examinations and School Attendance Ratio" and by redesignating 0440-01-.11 "Teacher Training Programs" as "Instructor-training Programs" so that, as amended, the Table of Contents shall read:

#### **Table of Contents**

0440-0101 Requirements for School License	0440-0111 Instructor-training Programs
0440-01- 02 Change of School Ownership and	0440-0112 Demonstrations
Relocation	0440-0113 Fees
0440-0103 Curriculum	0440-0114 Civil Penalties
0440-0104 High School Equivalents	0440-0115 Practice by Instructor
0440-0105 Requirements for Schools	0440-0116 Schools Providing Limited Instruction
0440-0106 Enrollment of Students	0440-0117 Communication with the Board
0440-0107 Student Kits	0440-0118 Expedited Licensing for Certain Military
0440-0108 Expiration of School Registration Renewal	Personnel and Spouses
0440-0109 Examinations and School	0440-0119 Mobile Shops
Attendance Ratio	

Rule 0440-01-.01 Requirements for School License is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) The Board of Cosmetology and Barber Examiners (hereinafter the "Board") will not issue, reissue, or renew a license to operate a school of cosmetology unless the school is equipped with all workable equipment consisting of at least:
  - (a) One (1) work station with adjustable chair per student working on the clinic floor with a minimum of fifteen (15) stations;
  - (b) Five (5) shampoo basins, with hot and cold running water, adequately spaced;
  - (c) Five (5) manicure stations;

0440-01-.10 Original License Fee

- (d) A minimum of five (5) working hooded dryers;
- (e) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station;
- (f) One (1) straight chair in the theory classroom for each student attending the class;
- (g) One (1) wet disinfectant at each student work station;
- (h) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
- (i) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
- (j) One (1) covered trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
- (k) One (1) enclosed dry sanitary compartment at each student work station;
- (I) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;
- (m) Time sheet/time clock;

- (n) A minimum of one (1) working restroom; and
- (o) One (1) blood exposure kit.
- (2) A school of cosmetology offering an aesthetics curriculum shall be equipped with all workable equipment consisting of at least:
  - (a) Sufficient facial steamers;
  - (b) One (1) suction machine or a Level I or II Microdermabrasion machine;
  - (c) One (1) light based device with the manufacturer's intended commercial use statement for hair removal and skin enhancement of face and body;
  - (d) Sufficient protective eyewear (glasses) recommended by the manufacturer of laser/light devices for each student and instructor;
  - (e) One (1) LED light with the manufacturers intended use statement for skin improvement;
  - (f) One (1) wax depilatory heater pot with the manufacturer's intended commercial use statement;
  - (g) One (1) hands free magnifying lamp;
  - (h) One (1) hot towel cabinet;
  - (i) One (1) reclining facial chair/table;
  - (j) One (1) electric brushing machine or sonic brushing device;
  - (k) One (1) sink which provides hot and cold running water other than the bathroom;
  - (I) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;
  - (m) One (1) covered trash container maintained in a sanitary condition at each teaching station:
  - (n) Sufficient work area for each student:
  - (o) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels:
  - (p) One (1) wet disinfectant;
  - (q) One (1) professional makeup station representing a color matrix palette of makeup products;
  - (r) Sufficient disposable applicators for product application;
  - (s) One (1) skin care product kit containing two (2) products from each category: cleansers, astringent and toners, moisturizer, problem prep, and protective products;
  - (t) One (1) Autoclave instrument sanitizer;
  - (u) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station; and
  - (v) One (1) blood exposure kit.
- (3) A school of aesthetics shall be equipped with all workable equipment consisting of at least:
  - (a) One (1) work station per student working on the clinic floor;

- (b) One (1) straight chair in the theory classroom for each student attending class;
- (c) One (1) wet disinfectant at each student work station;
- (d) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
- (e) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
- (f) One (1) covered trash container maintained in a sanitary condition at each student work station;
- (g) One (1) enclosed dry sanitary compartment at each student work station;
- (h) Time sheet/time clock;
- (i) A minimum of one (1) working restroom;
- (j) One (1) blood exposure kit;
- (k) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station;
- (I) Sufficient facial steamers;
- (m) One (1) suction machine or a Level I or II Microdermabrasion machine;
- (n) One (1) light based device with the manufacturer's intended commercial use statement for hair removal and skin enhancement of face and body;
- (o) Sufficient protective eyewear (glasses) recommended by the manufacturer of laser/light devices for each student and instructor:
- (p) One (1) LED light with the manufacturers' intended use statement for skin improvement;
- (q) One (1) wax depilatory heater pot with the manufacturer's intended commercial use statement;
- (r) One (1) hands free magnifying lamp;
- (s) One (1) hot towel cabinet;
- (t) One (1) reclining facial chair/table;
- (u) One (1) electric brushing machine or sonic brushing device;
- (v) One (1) sink which provides hot and cold running water other than the bathroom;
- (w) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;
- (x) One (1) professional makeup station representing a color matrix palette of makeup products;
- (y) One (1) Autoclave instrument sanitizer;
- (z) One (1) skin care product kit containing two (2) products from each category: cleansers, astringent and toners, moisturizer, problem prep, and protective products; and
- (aa) Sufficient disposable applicators for product application.
- (4) A school of natural hair styling shall be equipped with all workable equipment consisting of at least:

- (a) One (1) work station with adjustable chair per student working on the clinic floor;
- (b) One (1) straight chair in the theory classroom for each student attending class;
- (c) Two (2) shampoo bowls with hot and cold running water and chairs in work area;
- (d) Two (2) working hooded dryers;
- (e) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
- (f) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
- (g) One (1) covered and labeled trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
- (h) One (1) dry sanitary compartment at each student work station;
- (i) One (1) wet disinfectant;
- (j) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;
- (k) One (1) blood exposure kit;
- (I) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station;
- (m) A minimum of one (1) working restroom; and
- (n) A time sheet/time clock.
- (5) A school of manicuring shall be equipped with all workable equipment consisting of at least:
  - (a) One (1) manicure table with stool or chair per student working on the clinic floor;
  - (b) One (1) straight chair in the theory classroom for each student attending the class;
  - (c) One (1) dry sanitary compartment at each student work station;
  - (d) One (1) wet disinfectant;
  - (e) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;
  - (f) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
  - (g) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (h) One (1) covered and labeled trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (i) One (1) sink which provides hot and cold running water in the clinic floor area, excluding the bathroom;
  - (j) One (1) finger bowl per table;
  - (k) One (1) covered container per table for cotton balls and swabs;
  - (I) One (1) foot bath per student working on the clinic floor;
  - (m) One (1) blood exposure kit;
  - (n) One (1) labeled sharps container at each student work station for biohazard material removal;
  - (o) A minimum of one (1) working restroom;

- (p) A sign prominently posted stating that the customer has the right not to have drills used on his or her nails; and
- (q) A time sheet/time clock.
- (6) Requirements for All Schools Licensed Under T.C.A. Title 62, Chapter 4
  - (a) All schools shall have a sign prominently posted stating that all services are performed by students; and
  - (b) All containers for cosmetic and any other products must be properly labeled.
- (7) The Board shall have the authority to approve a school without a restroom facility located therein if the school is located within a mall, strip shopping center, or other commercial property and the school owner can demonstrate shared public restroom facilities are standard for the location.
- (8) Requirements for Instructional Floor Space
  - (a) "Instructional floor space" means the floor space of a school designated primarily for the instruction of students and shall not include such spaces as storage, restrooms, utility rooms, passageways, or inhabited administrative spaces such as reception areas, offices and break areas.
  - (b) A school of cosmetology offering a manicuring curriculum shall also be equipped with adequate instructional floor space for manicuring so as not to compromise or disrupt the teaching of cosmetology curriculum prescribed in Rule 0440-01-.03.
  - (c) A school of cosmetology offering a natural hair styling curriculum shall also be equipped with adequate instructional floor space for natural hair styling so as to not compromise or disrupt the teaching of cosmetology curriculum prescribed in Rule 0440-01-.03.
  - (d) A school of cosmetology offering an aesthetics curriculum shall also be equipped with adequate instructional floor space for aesthetics so as not to compromise or disrupt the teaching of cosmetology curriculum prescribed in Rule 0440-01-.03.
- (9) Floor Plan
  - (a) A proposed floor plan must be submitted to and approved by the Board before:
    - 1. Issuance of a license to operate a new school of cosmetology;
    - 2. Issuance of a license to operate a school of cosmetology whose ownership has changed; or
    - 3. Reissuance of a license to operate a relocated school of cosmetology;
  - (b) For all schools other than specialized schools as described in subparagraph (4)(c), below, the floor plan shall provide for, and the school shall contain, at least two thousand two hundred square feet (2200 sq. ft.) of instructional floor space, including an enclosed classroom for theory instruction.
  - (c) The floor plan for a specialized school solely offering a course of study in aesthetics, manicuring, or natural hair styling shall provide for, and the school shall contain, adequate floor space as determined by the Board.

## (10) New School

(a) A new school shall be closed to the public for ninety (90) days after the issuance of its license unless the school has students enrolled with the required two hundred (200) or more hours to perform cosmetology services on the public.

- (b) A branch school shall be considered a new school unless the school has students enrolled with the required two hundred (200) or more hours to perform cosmetology services on the public.
- (c) If an existing school requires an expansion campus facility, the facility must be located within two (2) miles of the main campus.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-4-105, 62-4-116, 62-4-117, 62-4-120, and 62-4-122.

0440-01-.02 Change of School Ownership and Relocation is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) The Board shall be notified within ten (10) days of the effective date of any change in ownership or name of a school of cosmetology.
- (2) Substantial changes to a school's physical location shall be deemed a relocation. A new license for a relocated school shall be required following an inspection. Substantial changes include, but are not limited to, a significant increase or reduction in a school's square footage as well as changes to the floor plan, physical walls, and entry doors. The Board shall be notified in writing of any substantial changes no less than thirty (30) days prior to the changes being made.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-4-105 and 62-4-120.

Rule 0440-01-.07 Student Kits is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) Each student, with school assistance, shall be required to have a kit consisting of the following materials after two hundred (200) hours of enrollment in a cosmetology program:
  - (a) Six (6) brushes;
  - (b) Four (4) combs;
  - (c) One (1) razor and one (1) pair of cutting shears and thinning shears;
  - (d) One (1) box of roller clips;
  - (e) One (1) box of clips;
  - (f) Twelve (12) butterfly clips;
  - (g) Six (6) duckbill clips;
  - (h) One (1) theory book (electronic or hard copy);
  - (i) One (1) workbook (electronic or hard copy);
  - (j) Three (3) orangewood sticks;
  - (k) One (1) box of emery boards;
  - (I) One (1) cuticle pusher;
  - (m) One (1) finger bowl;
  - (n) One (1) styling cape;
  - (o) One (1) shampoo cape:
  - (p) One (1) nail brush;

	(p)	One (1) mannequin;
	(r)	One (1) odorless acrylic kit;
	(s)	One (1) sanitizable file;
	(t)	One (1) blow dryer;
	(u)	One (1) curling iron;
	(v)	Disposable gloves;
	(w)	Disposable caps;
	(x)	One (1) hand form and holder or two (2) fingers and holder;
	(y)	One (1) set of instructions to access online laws and rules;
	(z)	Twelve (12) per rods;
	(aa)	Two (2) color bowls; and
	(bb)	Two (2) color brushes.
(2)		student, with school assistance, shall be required to have a kit consisting of the following als after one hundred (100) hours of enrollment in a manicuring program:
	(a)	One (1) theory book (electronic or hard copy);
	(b)	One (1) workbook (electronic or hard copy);
	(c)	One (1) pair nippers;
	(d)	Three (3) orangewood sticks;
	(e)	One (1) box of emery boards;
	(f)	One (1) cuticle pusher;
	(g)	One (1) finger bowl;
	(h)	One (1) sanitizable file;
	(i)	One (1) nail brush;
	(j)	One (1) polish kit;
	(k)	One (1) hand form and holder;
	<b>(I)</b>	One (1) wet disinfectant;
	(m)	One (1) tweezer;
	(n)	One (1) pair manicure scissors;
	(0)	Nail glue;
	(p)	Supplies for nail wraps;
	(p)	Supplies for sculptured nails;

	(r)	Goggles;
	(s)	One (1) hand form and holder or two (2) fingers and holder;
	(t)	One (1) odorless acrylic kit;
	(u)	Disposable gloves; and
	(v)	One (1) set of instructions to access online laws and rules.
(3)	Each s materia	tudent, with school assistance, shall be required to have a kit consisting of the following als after one hundred fifty (150) hours of enrollment in an aesthetics program:
	(a)	One (1) theory book (electronic or hard copy);
	(b)	One (1) workbook (electronic or hard copy);
	(c)	One (1) package cotton swabs;
	(d)	One (1) roll of cotton;
	(e)	One (1) box of tissues;
	(f)	Three (3) spatulas;
	(g)	Two (2) sterilizer jars;
	(h)	One (1) tweezer;
	(i)	One (1) make-up kit;
	(j)	One (1) set of make-up brushes;
	(k)	Two (2) head covers;
	(1)	One (1) set of skin care treatment products to include one (1) container each: cleansing cream, astringent, massage cream, night cream, moisturizer, all-purpose masque;
	(m)	Two (2) disposable bags;
	(n)	One (1) shoulder cape;
	(o)	One (1) bottle alcohol;
	(p)	One (1) pair disposable gloves;
	(p)	Two (2) cups;
	(r)	Two (2) small bowls; and
	(s)	One (1) set of instructions to access online laws and rules.
(4)		student, with school assistance, shall be required to have a kit consisting of the following als after fifty (50) hours of enrollment in a natural hair styling program:
	(a)	One (1) theory book (electronic or hard copy);
	(b)	One (1) workbook (electronic or hard copy);
	(c)	Two (2) mannequins (ethnic hair);

- (d) Two (2) bags of braiding hair;
- (e) Two (2) bags of kinky textured hair;
- (f) One (1) pack of track hair;
- (g) Four (4) all-purpose combs;
- (h) One (1) styling cape;
- (i) One (1) shampoo cape;
- (j) One (1) plastic pick;
- (k) Two (2) rat tail combs;
- (I) One (1) barber comb;
- (m) One (1) detangle comb;
- (n) One (1) pair scissors;
- (o) Thread:
- (p) One (1) hair weaving needle; and
- (q) One (1) set of instructions to access online laws and rules.
- (5) It shall be the responsibility of the student to maintain all materials in the kits furnished pursuant to this rule.
- (6) Schools shall have disposable gloves and safety goggles available to all students.

Authority: T.C.A. § 62-4-105.

Rule 0440-01-.11 Teacher Training Programs is amended by changing the heading to "Instructor-training Programs" and by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) An application for approval of an instructor-training program in cosmetology, aesthetics, manicuring, or natural hair styling shall include:
  - (a) A summary of the education and experience of each instructor for the program;
  - (b) The scheduled dates of the program; and
  - (c) The proposed curriculum of the program.
- (2) The applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Board that the instructor-training program submitted for approval will:
  - (a) Contain at least sixteen (16) hours of actual instruction;
  - (b) Emphasize teaching methodology for its entire duration;
  - (c) Restrict the size of classes sufficiently to ensure adequate attention to all participants;
  - (d) Proceed for not more than two (2) hours without a break;
  - (e) Prohibit demonstrations or presentations for commercial purposes in classrooms. Training programs may not sell, take orders, or in any way promote a product; and

- (f) Conform to professional standards as determined by the Board. This can be determined by, but not limited to, the following: fraud, unprofessional, immoral or dishonorable conduct, a violation of T.C.A. §§ 62-4 et seq., or of any rules duly promulgated under this chapter, or failure to comply with a lawful order of the board.
- Any online, virtual or electronic instructor-training program shall further demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Board that the instructor-training program submitted for approval does not allow one to skip through content and meets at least one (1) of the following qualifications:
  - (a) Streamed or real-time presentation that allows the submission of questions, group chat, or solicits responses from licensees through surveys, multiple choice questions, etc.;
  - (b) Requires a unique login; or
  - (c) Monitors licensee participation and includes a testing component that requires a passing grade in order to complete the program.
- (4) Promptly after the completion of an instructor-training program approved by the Board, the sponsor shall send to the Board a roster showing the names, social security number and I.D. number of the persons who attended the program and the number of hours that such persons completed.
- (5) The sponsor shall provide an opportunity for the attendees to evaluate each class and the overall program. The original evaluations shall be forwarded to the office of the Board.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-4-105 and 62-4-114.

Rule 0440-01-.15 Practice By Instructor is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) Continuing Education
  - (a) An instructor shall complete at least sixteen (16) hours of actual instruction in order to obtain credit. An instructor shall deduct any time in which the instructor failed to attend the program from the amount of credit sought for attendance.
  - (b) In order for a licensed instructor to obtain credit for taking a continuing education course in a state other than the State of Tennessee, the licensed instructor shall obtain the Board's approval before taking the course by submitting a written request for approval to the Board within sixty (60) days before the licensed instructor intends to take the course. Such written request must include a copy of the course's curriculum.
  - (c) A licensed instructor shall submit a request for an extension of time to complete the instructor-training requirements in writing along with proof showing a medical hardship, a death in the immediate family, or other emergency pursuant to T.C.A. § 62-4-114 prior to the expiration date of the instructor's license.
- (2) An instructor may only practice or teach the discipline in which he or she is licensed-; therefore, an instructor may only obtain credit for an instructor-training program in the discipline in which he or she is licensed.
- (3) An instructor who is not granted an extension prior to the expiration date of the certificate of registration and who fails to obtain the required number of continuing education hours shall be denied renewal. The Executive Director shall have discretion to allow the instructor up to one hundred eighty (180) additional days to submit continuing education hours and renew the certificate of registration if a written request is made by the instructor within sixty (60) days following the expiration date of the certificate of registration and the instructor shows a causal connection between a medical illness and failure to obtain the continuing education hours or shows a death in the immediate family.

- (4) If the instructor fails to make a written request within sixty (60) days of the expiration date of the certificate of registration, but makes the request within three hundred sixty-five (365) days following the expiration date of the certificate of registration or does not meet the criteria for Executive Director approval in paragraph (3), the Board shall have the discretion to allow the instructor up to one hundred eighty (180) additional days to submit continuing education hours if the instructor can demonstrate a medical illness, a death in the immediate family or other emergency pursuant to T.C.A. § 62-4-114.
- (5) An instructor who fails to obtain the required number of continuing education hours prior to the expiration date appearing on the certificate of registration and is either not eligible for an extension pursuant to paragraphs (3) and (4) or not granted an extension shall not engage in any activity which requires an instructor's certificate of registration and shall be required to retake the instructor's examination, complete the continuing education hours, and pay any applicable fees in order for the certificate of registration to be reinstated.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-4-105, 62-4-108, and 62-4-114.

## Chapter 0440-02 Sanitary Rules

#### **Amendments**

Rule 0440-02-.07 Equipment is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) Every cosmetology shop shall be equipped with at least:
  - (a) One (1) shampoo bowl with hot and cold running water and chair in work area;
  - (b) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
  - (c) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (d) One (1) covered and labeled trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (e) One (1) dry sanitary compartment;
  - (f) One (1) wet disinfectant;
  - (g) One (1) work station (standard size) for each operator;
  - (h) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;
  - (i) One (1) blood exposure kit;
  - (j) A minimum of one (1) working restroom; and
  - (k) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station.
- (2) Every skin care shop shall be equipped with at least:
  - (a) One (1) sink which provides hot and cold running water in the work area, excluding the bathroom;
  - (b) One (1) hands free magnifying lamp;
  - (c) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
  - (d) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (e) One (1) covered and labeled trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (f) One (1) reclining facial chair/table;
  - (g) One (1) wet disinfectant;
  - (h) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;
  - (i) One (1) blood exposure kit;
  - (j) A minimum of one (1) working restroom;
  - (k) One (1) sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station;
  - (I) One (1) electric hot towel cabin;
  - (m) One (1) facial steamer; and

- (n) One (1) wax depilatory heater pot with manufacturer's intended commercial use statement.
- (3) Every manicure shop shall be equipped with at least:
  - (a) One (1) manicure table with stool or chair, per manicurist;
  - (b) One (1) patron chair;
  - (c) One (1) wet disinfectant;
  - (d) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;
  - (e) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
  - (f) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (g) One (1) covered and labeled trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (h) One (1) sink which provides hot and cold running water in the work area, excluding the bathroom;
  - (i) One (1) finger bowl per table;
  - (j) One (1) covered container per table for cotton balls and swabs;
  - (k) One (1) foot bath if pedicures are offered;
  - (I) One (1) blood exposure kit;
  - (m) A minimum of one (1) working restroom;
  - (n) Sign prominently posted stating that the customer has the right not to have drills used on his or her nails; and
  - (o) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station.
- (4) Every natural hair stylist shop shall be equipped with at least:
  - (a) One (1) shampoo bowl with hot and cold running water and chair in work area;
  - (b) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
  - (c) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels:
  - (d) One (1) covered and labeled trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (e) One (1) dry sanitary compartment;
  - (f) One (1) wet disinfectant;
  - (g) One (1) work station (standard size) for each operator;
  - (h) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;
  - (i) One (1) blood exposure kit;
  - (j) A minimum of one (1) working restroom; and
  - (k) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station.

- (5) Every shop shall contain sufficient equipment to enable it to perform all services offered competently and efficiently.
  - (a) All equipment must be in working order.
  - (b) All containers for cosmetic and any other products must be properly labeled.
- (6) Residential shops must maintain a separate entrance without requiring passage through any portion of a private residence. Separate restroom facilities must be provided apart from the living quarters.
- (7) Unless otherwise licensed as a mobile shop, a cosmetology, skin care, natural hair stylist or manicure shop located in a mobile home or mobile unit will not be approved for a license unless it is placed on a permanent foundation or otherwise rendered immobile.
- (8) A cosmetology, skin care, natural hair stylist or manicure shop must have a separate entrance from any other business except in malls, strip shopping centers, or other commercial property approved by the Board.
- (9) The Board shall have the authority to approve a shop without a restroom facility located therein if the shop is located within a mall, strip shopping center, or other commercial property and the shop owner can demonstrate shared public restroom facilities are standard for the location.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-4-105 and 62-4-125.

<sup>\*</sup> If a roll-call vote was necessary, the vote by the Agency on these rulemaking hearing rules was as follows:

<b>Board Member</b>	Aye	No	Abstain	Absent	Signature (if required)
Ron R. Gillihan II	X				
Kelly Barger	X				
Judy McAllister					
Patricia J.	X				
Richmond					
Mona Sappenfield	Х				
Frank Gambuzza	Х				
Amy Tanksley	X				
Anita Charlton	X				
Yvette Granger	Х				
Susan Witcher	Х				
Rebecca Russell	Х				
Janie Ross	Х				
Vacant	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Vacant	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

I certify that this is an accurate and complete copy of rulemaking hearing rules, lawfully promulgated and adopted by the \_Tennessee Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners\_\_ (board/commission/other authority) on October 5, 2020 (mm/dd/yyyy), and is in compliance with the provisions of T.C.A. § 4-5-222.

Notice of Rulemaking Hearing filed with the Department of State on:	August 14-2020
Rulemaking Hearing(s) Conducted on: (add more dates).  October 5, 2  Date:	2020
November 6, 2020	
Signature:	
Name of Officer: Hugh Cross	
Title of Officer: Assistant General Cou	unsel

Agency/Board/Commission: Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards, Board of

Cosmetology & Barber Examiners

0200-01, 0440-01, 0440-02 Rule Chapter Number(s):

All rulemaking hearing rules provided for herein have been examined by the Attorney General and Reporter of the State of Tennessee and are approved as to legality pursuant to the provisions of the Administrative Procedures Act, Tennessee Code Annotated, Title 4, Chapter 5.

> Herbert H. Slate Attorney General and Reporter

I further certify the following:

## **Department of State Use Only**

Filed with the Department of State on:	3/15/2021
Effective on:	6/13/2021
	1. It It
	Tre Hargett Secretary of State

RECEIVED
MAR 15 2021

Secretary of State Division of Publications

## **Public Hearing Comments**

One copy of a document that satisfies T.C.A. § 4-5-222 must accompany the filing.

The Tennessee Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners has received no comments on the proposed rules.

## **Regulatory Flexibility Addendum**

Pursuant to T.C.A. §§ 4-5-401 through 4-5-404, prior to initiating the rule making process, all agencies shall conduct a review of whether a proposed rule or rule affects small business.

These rules will also result in greater efficiency and consumer protection, and the Board sees minimal impact to consumers with the promulgation of the proposed rules. Further, these rules are a positive move as they provide clarification on a number of substantive issues such as the equipment requirements, student definitions, mobile shop requirements, relocation requirements, and teacher training program requirements, as well as remove costly requirements that the Board believes are unnecessary while adding inexpensive requirements to ensure sanitation thereby protecting consumers. While the various amendments may result in some cost for compliance, the Board knows of no other less burdensome, less intrusive, or less costly alternative methods of achieving the purpose and objectives of the proposed rules. Finally, these amendments are substantially similar to other states with rules and regulations over the cosmetology and barber industry, thus making Tennessee rules consistent with other jurisdictions and allowing better license portability for current and future licensees.

## Impact on Local Governments

Pursuant to T.C.A. §§ 4-5-220 and 4-5-228 "any rule proposed to be promulgated shall state in a simple declarative sentence, without additional comments on the merits of the policy of the rules or regulation, whether the rule or regulation may have a projected impact on local governments." (See Public Chapter Number 1070 (<a href="http://publications.tnsosfiles.com/acts/106/pub/pc1070.pdf">http://publications.tnsosfiles.com/acts/106/pub/pc1070.pdf</a>) of the 2010 Session of the General Assembly.)

The Tennessee Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners foresees no impact on local governments.

## Additional Information Required by Joint Government Operations Committee

All agencies, upon filing a rule, must also submit the following pursuant to T.C.A. § 4-5-226(i)(1).

(A) A brief summary of the rule and a description of all relevant changes in previous regulations effectuated by such rule;

The proposed rules were approved by the Board on October 1, 2018. These rules amend the equipment requirements pertaining to shops, schools, student kits, and the residential barber kit, clarify the definition of both full-time and part-time students, reduce the hours required under the barber instructor training program curriculum as required by statute, implement a ten (10) day notification requirement related to any change in ownership under the barbering discipline, clarify when substantial changes are deemed a relocation for compliance purposes, provide guidelines for online, virtual, or electronic teacher training programs, and detail the procedures related to instructors receiving credit for teacher training programs.

**(B)** A citation to and brief description of any federal law or regulation or any state law or regulation mandating promulgation of such rule or establishing guidelines relevant thereto;

Revisions to T.C.A. §62-3-124 (a) required a reduction of the number of barber instructor hours from four hundred fifty (450) to three hundred (300) in this set of rules. There is no known state or federal law or regulation mandating promulgation of the remainder of the changes proposed in these rules.

(C) Identification of persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities most directly affected by this rule, and whether those persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities urge adoption or rejection of this rule;

The proposed rules will affect current licensees and future applications. We believe all affected will approve the adoption of these rules, because the proposed rules will benefit all industry members. Further, the Board proposed these changes based on discussion by associations of the cosmetology and barber industry.

(D) Identification of any opinions of the attorney general and reporter or any judicial ruling that directly relates to the rule or the necessity to promulgate the rule;

There are no known opinions of the Attorney General and Reporter or any judicial ruling that relates directly to these proposed rules.

(E) An estimate of the probable increase or decrease in state and local government revenues and expenditures, if any, resulting from the promulgation of this rule, and assumptions and reasoning upon which the estimate is based. An agency shall not state that the fiscal impact is minimal if the fiscal impact is more than two percent (2%) of the agency's annual budget or five hundred thousand dollars (\$500,000), whichever is less;

The Board foresees minimal impact to state and local government revenues and expenditures.

(F) Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives, possessing substantial knowledge and understanding of the rule;

Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners
Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards
Hugh Cross, Assistant General Counsel
500 James Robertson Parkway
(615) 741-3072
Hugh.Cross@TN.gov

Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners
Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards
Roxana Gumucio, Executive Director
500 James Robertson Parkway
(615) 532-7081
Roxana.Gumucio@TN.gov

(G) Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives who will explain the rule at a scheduled meeting of the committees;

Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners
Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards
Hugh Cross, Assistant General Counsel
500 James Robertson Parkway
(615) 741-3072

Hugh.Cross@TN.gov

Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners
Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards
Roxana Gumucio, Executive Director
500 James Robertson Parkway
(615) 532-7081
Roxana.Gumucio@TN.gov

(H) Office address, telephone number, and email address of the agency representative or representatives who will explain the rule at a scheduled meeting of the committees; and

Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners
Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards
Hugh Cross, Assistant General Counsel
500 James Robertson Parkway
(615) 741-3072
Hugh.Cross@TN.gov

Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners
Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards
Roxana Gumucio, Executive Director
500 James Robertson Parkway
(615) 532-7081
Roxana.Gumucio@TN.gov

(I) Any additional information relevant to the rule proposed for continuation that the committee requests.

There is no additional information relevant to the rule proposed for continuation that the committee requests.

## Department of State Division of Publications

312 Rosa L. Parks Ave., 8th Floor, Snodgrass/TN Tower

Nashville, TN 37243 Phone: 615-741-2650

Email: publications.information@tn.gov

For Department of State Use Only		
Sequence Number:		
Rule ID(s):		
File Date:		
Effective Date:		

# Rulemaking Hearing Rule(s) Filing Form

Rulemaking Hearing Rules are rules filed after and as a result of a rulemaking hearing (Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-5-205).

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-5-229, any new fee or fee increase promulgated by state agency rule shall take effect on July 1, following the expiration of the ninety (90) day period as provided in § 4-5-207. This section shall not apply to rules that implement new fees or fee increases that are promulgated as emergency rules pursuant to § 4-5-208(a) and to subsequent rules that make permanent such emergency rules, as amended during the rulemaking process. In addition, this section shall not apply to state agencies that did not, during the preceding two (2) fiscal years, collect fees in an amount sufficient to pay the cost of operating the board, commission or entity in accordance with § 4-29-121(b).

Agency/Board/Commission:	Tennessee Board of Cosmetology and Barber Examiners	
Division:	Department of Commerce & Insurance	
Contact Person:	Hugh Cross, Assistant General Counsel	
Address:	500 James Robertson Parkway	
Zip:	37243	
Phone:	(615) 741-3072	
Email:	Hugh.Cross@TN.gov	

Re	vision Type (check all that apply):
Χ	Amendment
	New
	Repeal

**Rule(s)** (**ALL** chapters and rules contained in filing must be listed here. If needed, copy and paste additional tables to accommodate multiple chapters. Please make sure that **ALL** new rule and repealed rule numbers are listed in the chart below. Please enter only **ONE** Rule Number/Rule Title per row.)

Chapter Number	Chapter Title
0200-01	Rules of the Barber Board
Rule Number	Rule Title
0200-0101	Requirements for School License
0200-0102	Curriculum
0200-0105	Posting of Licenses
0200-0107	Equipment and Location Requirements for Barber Shops
0200-0112	Inspections
0200-0114	Teacher Training Programs
0200-0115	Student Kits

Chapter Number	Chapter Title
0440-01	Licensing
Rule Number	Rule Title
0440-0101	Requirements for School License
0440-0102	Change of School Ownership and Relocation
0440-0107	Student Kits
0440-0111	Teacher Training Programs
0440-0115	Practice By Instructor

<b>Chapter Number</b>	Chapter Title
0440-02	Sanitary Rules
Rule Number	Rule Title
0440-0207	Equipment

Place substance of rules and other info here. Please be sure to include a detailed explanation of the changes being made to the listed rule(s). Statutory authority must be given for each rule change. For information on formatting rules go to

https://sos.tn.gov/products/division-publications/rulemaking-guidelines.

Chapter 0200-01
Rules of the Barber Board

#### Amendments

The title of Chapter 0200-01 "Rules of the Barber Board" is amended by deleting the title and substituting the following so that as amended the title shall read:

## Rules of the Barber Board Licensing

The Table of Contents for Chapter 0200-01 is amended by redesignating 0200-01-.14 "Teacher Training Programs" as "Instructor-training Programs" so that, as amended, the Table of Contents shall read:

#### **Table of Contents**

0200-0101 Requirements for School License	0200-0111 Fees
0200-0102 Curriculum	0200-0112 Inspections
0200-0103 Transcripts	0200-0113 License Qualifications
0200-0104 Applications for Examination	0200-0114 Teacher Instructor-Ttraining Programs
0200-0105 Posting of Licenses	0200-0115 Student Kits
0200-0106 Expiration of Certificates of Registration	0200-0116 Demonstrations
0200-0107 Equipment and Location Requirements	0200-0117 Alcoholic Beverages
0200-0108 Educational Equivalent	0200-0118 Civil Penalties
0200-0109 Examinations	0200-0119 Mobile Shops
0200-0110 Original License Fee	0200-0120 Residential Barber Services

Rule 0200-01-.01 Requirements for School License is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) The Board of <u>Cosmetology and</u> Barber Examiners will not <u>issue</u>, <u>reissue</u>, <u>or renew a license</u> to <u>operate</u> <u>approve an application for</u> a new <u>school</u>, change of ownership or <u>change of</u> location of a school of barbering unless the school is equipped with at least the following:
  - (a) A minimum of two (2) one (1) working restroom facilities;
  - (b) One (1) work station with adjustable chair per student working on the clinic floor, with a minimum of fifteen (15) stations;
  - (c) Five (5) shampoo basins adequately spaced with hot and cold running water;
  - (d) Two (2) manicure tables stations;
  - (e) Two (2) floor based hooded dryers;
  - (f) One (1) sitting arrangement straight chair in the theory classroom for each student attending class;
  - (g) One (1) wet sterilizer disinfectant at each student work station;
  - (h) One (1) Eenclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
  - (i) One (1) Enclosed covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (i) One (1) Covered trash containers maintained in a sanitary condition;

- (k) One (1) Sufficient ultraviolet ultraviolet sanitizer and/or dry sterilization at each students' work station;
- (I) Posted sign stating that all barber services are performed by students;
- (m) Adequate waiting area for customers One (1) dry sanitary compartment at each student work station; and
- (n) A Time sheet/time clock-:
- (o) One (1) blood exposure kit; and
- (p) One (1) labeled sharps container at each student work station for biohazard material removal.
- (2) A proposed floor plan must be submitted to and approved by the Board before:
  - (a) Issuance of a license to operate a new barber school;
  - (b) Issuance of a license to operate a barber school whose ownership has changed;
  - (c) Reissuance of a license to operate a relocated barber school; or
  - (d) A branch school shall be considered a new school and closed to the public for ninety (90) days. Issuance of a license to operate a branch of an existing school at a new location, which shall be considered a new school for purposes of this rule and shall remain closed to the public until it is inspected and approved by the Board to open.
- (3) The floor plan shall provide for and the school shall contain, at least sixteen hundred square feet (1600 sq. ft.) of instructional floor space, including an enclosed classroom for theory instruction. The building shall meet all applicable fire and building regulations prescribed by state or local government.
- The Board shall have the authority to approve a school without a restroom facility located therein if the school is located within a mall, strip shopping center, or other commercial property and the school owner can demonstrate shared public restroom facilities are standard for the location.
- $\frac{(4)(5)}{(5)}$  The requirements of the school for enrollment of students are:
  - (a) Every barber school shall maintain documentation in each student's file which evidences age and education which meets eligibility requirements for enrollment;
  - (b) Every enrollment of a student in a barber school shall be evidenced by a written enrollment agreement, signed by both parties, which clearly details the rights and obligations of both parties; and
  - (c) The school shall furnish to the student an executed copy of the enrollment agreement and maintain a copy of the agreement in the student's file.
  - (d) The school must have at least fifteen (15) students enrolled (part-time or full-time) and the school must provide proof of same to the Board in the form of signed student enrollment agreements prior to being granted a barber school license.
  - (e)(d) Full-time barber school students must attend shall be defined as students enrolled in school for at least twenty-five (25) hours per week and part-time barber school students must attend shall be defined as students enrolled in school for at least fifteen (15) hours per week.
- (5)(6) Every student enrollment agreement shall:
  - (a) Be signed and dated by the student and an authorized representative of the school;

- (b) Specify the number of clock hours in the course of instruction and an approximate number of weeks or months required for completion;
- (c) Identify all costs and charges which the student must bear;
- (d) Indicate any grounds for termination of a student by the school;
- (e) State in clear and understandable language the school's refund policy;
- (f) List any special conditions or requirements for graduation; and
- (g) Contain an acknowledgment that the student has read and understands the agreement before making any payment thereunder.
- (6)(7) All documentation and enrollment agreements required under this rule shall be available for inspection by members or inspectors of the Board during business hours.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-3-122, 62-3-123, and 62-3-128(a).

0200-01-.02 Curriculum is amended by deleting the text of paragraph (3) of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended paragraph (3) shall read:

- (3) The barber instructor-training program curriculum shall consist of the following:
  - (a) Lesson Planning:

Course outlining and development Lesson planning and motivation Record keeping Testing Grading

Required Total: 125 100 Hours

(b) General:

Book Knowledge Teaching Techniques Visual Aid Equipment Classroom Management Student Motivation Product Knowledge State Laws

Required Total: 125 100 Hours

(c) Physical:

Permanent Waving
Relaxers
Shampooing
Nail Care
Facials
Hair Coloring/Lightening
Haircutting
Clinic Floor Management

Required Total: 200 100 Hours

Total Hours: 450 300 Hours

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-3-105, 62-3-123, and 62-3-128.

0200-01-.05 Posting of Licenses is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) The Board shall be notified within ten (10) days of the effective date of any change in ownership of a barber shop, barber school or college.
- (1)(2) All certificates of registration issued to master barbers, and technicians must be posted at the station where the licensee registrant works, and shall not be laminated.
- (2)(3) All certificates of registration issued to barber shops, barber schools or colleges, and barber instructors must be conspicuously posted on the premises and shall not be laminated.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-3-118 and 62-3-128.

0200-01-.07 Equipment and Location Requirements for Barber Shops is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) Every barber shop shall be equipped with at least:
  - (a) One (1) shampoo bowl with hot and cold running water and a chair;
  - (b) One (1) enclosed <u>and labeled</u> storage area for clean towels;
  - (c) One (1) covered <u>and labeled</u> container for soiled towels;
  - (d) One (1) dry sterilizer or sanitary compartment per station;
  - (e) One (1) work station and mirror for each licensee operator;
  - (f) One (1) covered container for trash, maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (g) Adequate restroom facilities One (1) working restroom;
  - (h) One (1) wet <u>sterilizing disinfectant</u> solution container per barber chair; <u>and</u>
  - (i) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer-: and
  - (j) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station.
- (2) Residential shops must maintain a separate entrance without requiring passage through any portion of a private residence. Separate restroom facilities must be provided apart from the living quarters.
- (3) <u>Unless otherwise licensed as a mobile shop.</u> A <u>a</u> barber shop located in a mobile home or mobile unit will not be approved unless it is placed on a permanent foundation or otherwise rendered immobile.
- (4) A barber shop in a residential building must be located on the first floor (street level or one (1) level below)
- The Board shall have the authority to approve a shop without a restroom facility located therein if the shop is located within a mall, strip shopping center, or other commercial property and the shop owner can demonstrate shared public restroom facilities are standard for the location.
- (5) Laundry work may be performed on the premises of an establishment only:
  - (a) In an area not frequented by the general public nor used for instruction, rest or study by students:

- (b) With workable equipment which has hot and cold water; and
- (c) Bleach and detergent must be used.
- (6) Every shop shall contain sufficient equipment to enable it to perform all services offered competently and efficiently. All equipment must be in working order.
- (7) Every barber providing residential barber services pursuant to T.C.A. § 62-3-135 shall have a kit consisting of at least the following materials at all times when providing services in residences:
  - (a) One (1) enclosed and labeled container with clean towels separated from other equipment;
  - (b) One (1) enclosed and labeled container solely for soiled towels;
  - (c) One (1) wet surface shampoo cape;
  - (d) One (1) cape (not wet surface) chair cloth;
  - (e) Trash bags;
  - (f) One (1) leak tight container for wet sterilizer disinfectant solution;
  - (g) One (1) bottle container of wet sterilizer disinfectant solution;
  - (h) One (1) aerosol spray disinfectant for clippers;
  - (i) One (1) portable <u>ultra violet</u> <u>ultraviolet</u> sanitizer;
  - (j) One (1) blood spill exposure kit;
  - (k) Extra disposable gloves;
  - (I) One (1) bottle of alcohol;
  - (m) Hand sanitizer;
  - (n) Cotton balls;
  - (o) Cotton swabs;
  - (p) One (1) sharps disposal container for biohazard material removal;
  - (q) Neck strips; and
  - (r) A Pportable shampoo bowl, if required under Paragraph (8).
- (8) A portable shampoo bowl shall only be required pursuant to subparagraph (7)(r) when a barber is providing services in a residence involving removal of chemicals, including, but not limited to, color, permanents, relaxers and conditioners. If a barber intends to provide such services, the portable shampoo bowl shall be available for inspection prior to the issuance of the residential barber certificate. If a barber decides to provide such services after issuance of the residential barber certificate, the barber shall be obligated to notify the board and obtain a new equipment inspection at the barber's expense.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-3-109, 62-3-113, 62-3-128, 62-3-128(a), and 62-3-135.

0200-01-.12 Inspections is amended by adding paragraph (4) so that as amended the rule shall read:

(1) Members or inspectors of the Board shall be accorded access to each establishment for the purpose of conducting any inspections authorized by law.

- (2) The results of any inspection of an establishment may be reduced to a grade or rating on a form prescribed by the Board. Such form shall be furnished to the establishment and posted in a conspicuous place therein. This form must be signed personally, by either the school owner, school manager, shop owner or shop manager and a Board member/inspector.
- (3) Upon receipt of an application for a new or relocated barber establishment which will be located in an existing, licensed cosmetology shop, the barber shop may open for business prior to inspection. The shop application must be submitted immediately. Inspection will be conducted within ten (10) days of receipt of application.
- Substantial changes to a school's physical location shall be deemed a relocation. A new license for a relocated school shall be required following an inspection. Substantial changes include, but are not limited to, a significant increase or reduction in a school's square footage as well as changes to the floor plan, physical walls, and entry doors. The Board shall be notified in writing of any substantial changes no less than thirty (30) days prior to the changes being made.

Authority: T.C.A. § 62-3-128.

0200-01-.14 Teacher Training Programs is amended by changing the heading to "Instructor-training Programs" and deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) An application for approval of a teacher to teach an instructor-training program in barbering for licensed barber instructors to obtain continuing credit shall include:
  - (a) A summary of education and experience of each instructor for the program;
  - (b) The scheduled dates for the program; and
  - (c) The proposed curriculum of the program.
- (2) The applicant applying sponsor shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the board that the teacher instructor-training program submitted for approval will:
  - (a) Contain at least sixteen (16) hours of actual instruction;
  - (b) Emphasize teaching methodology for its entire duration;
  - (c) Restrict the size of classes sufficiently to ensure adequate attention to all participants;
  - (d) Proceed for not more than two (2) hours without a break; and
  - (e) Prohibit demonstrations or presentations for commercial purposes in classrooms.

    Training programs may not sell, take orders, or in any way promote a product; and
  - (f) Conform to professional standards as determined by the Board. This may be determined by, but not limited to, the following: fraud, unprofessional, immoral or dishonorable conduct, a violation of T.C.A. § 62-3-101, et. seq. or of any rules duly promulgated under this chapter, or failure to comply with a lawful order of the Board.
- Any online, virtual, or electronic instructor-training program shall further demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Board that the instructor-training program submitted for approval does not allow one to skip through content and meets at least one (1) of the following qualifications:
  - (a) Streamed or real-time presentation that allows the submission of questions, group chat, or solicits responses from registrants through surveys, multiple choice questions, etc.;
  - (b) Requires a unique login; or
  - (c) Monitors registrant participation and includes a testing component that requires a passing grade in order to complete the program.

- (3)(4) Promptly after the completion of a teacher an instructor-training program approved by the Board, the sponsor shall send to the Board a roster showing the names, social security numbers, and I.D. numbers of the persons who attended the program and the number of hours that such persons completed.
- (4)(5) The sponsor shall provide an opportunity for the attendees to evaluate each class and the overall program. The original evaluations shall be forwarded to the office of the Board.
- (6) Continuing Credit for Licensed Instructors Attending Instructor-training Programs
  - (a) A licensed instructor shall complete at least sixteen (16) hours of actual instruction in order to obtain continuing credit. A licensed instructor shall deduct any time in which the licensed instructor failed to attend the program from the amount of credit sought for attendance.
  - (b) A licensed instructor may practice or teach only the discipline in which he or she is licensed; therefore, a licensed instructor may obtain credit only for an instructor-training program in the discipline in which he or she is licensed.
  - (c) In order for a licensed instructor to obtain credit for taking an instructor-training course in a state other than the State of Tennessee, the licensed instructor shall obtain the Board's approval before taking the course by submitting a written request for approval to the Board no less than sixty (60) days before the licensed instructor intends to take the course. Such written request must include a copy of the curriculum.
  - (d) A licensed instructor shall submit a request for an extension of time to complete the instructor-training requirements in writing along with proof showing a medical hardship, a death in the immediate family or entitlement to automatic renewal of the certificate of registration under T.C.A. § 62-3-120 prior to the expiration date of the instructor's license.
    - 1. A licensed instructor who is not granted an extension prior to the expiration date of the certificate of registration and who fails to obtain the required number of instructor-training hours shall be denied renewal. The Executive Director shall have discretion to allow the licensed instructor up to one hundred eighty (180) additional days to submit instructor-training hours and renew the certificate of registration if a written request is made by the instructor within sixty (60) days following the expiration date of the certificate of registration and the licensed instructor demonstrates a medical hardship, shows a death in the immediate family, or shows entitlement to automatic renewal of the certificate of registration under T.C.A. § 62-3-120.
    - 2. If the licensed instructor fails to make a written request within sixty (60) days of the expiration date of the certificate of registration, but makes the request within three hundred sixty-five (365) days following the expiration date of the certificate of registration, the Board shall have the discretion to allow the instructor up to one hundred eighty (180) additional days to submit instructor-training if the licensed instructor can demonstrate a medical hardship, a death in the immediate family or entitlement to automatic renewal of the certificate of registration under T.C.A.§ 62-3-120.
  - (e) A licensed instructor who fails to obtain the required number of instructor-training hours prior to the expiration date appearing on the certificate of registration and who is either not eligible for an extension or not granted an extension, shall not engage in any activity which requires an instructor's certificate of registration and shall be required to retake the instructor's examination, complete the instructor-training hours, and pay any applicable fees in order for the certificate of registration to be reinstated.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-3-120, 62-3-124, and 62-3-128, 62-3-128 (a), and 62-3-124(b).

0200-01-.15 Student Kits is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as

- (1) Each student, with school assistance, shall be required to have a kit consisting of the following materials, for a master barber course after one hundred (100) hours of enrollment in a master barber program.:
  - (a) One (1) Four (4) taper combs;
  - (b) One (1) Four (4) styling combs:
  - (c) One (1) Four (4) picks;
  - (d) One (1) Two (2) vent-type brushes;
  - (e) One (1) Two (2) styling brushes:
  - (f) Six (6) duckbill clips;
  - (g) Six (6) Twelve (12) butterfly clips;
  - (h) One (1) blow dryer:
  - (i) One (1) curling iron;
  - (j) Adjustable clippers;
  - (k) T-edger/trimmer;
  - (I) Straight razor and blades;
  - (m) One (1) pair shears and one (1) pair blending shears;
  - (n) One (1) pair snippers;
  - (o) Three (3) orangewood sticks:
  - (p) One (1) box of emery boards;
  - (q) One (1) cuticle pusher:
  - (r) One (1) finger bowl;
  - (s) One (1) sanitizable file;
  - (t) One (1) nail brush;
  - (u) Facial cream One (1) shampoo cape;
  - (v) One (1) Cchair cloth;
  - (w) One (1) textbook theory book (electronic or hard copy);
  - (x) One (1) workbook (electronic or hard copy);
  - (y) A Mmannequin;
  - (z) One (1) hand form and holder or two (2) fingers and holder;
  - (aa) One (1) set of instructions to access online laws and rules;
  - (bb) Twelve (12) perm rods;

- (cc) Two (2) color bowls; and
- (dd) Two (2) color brushes.
- (2) Each student, with school assistance, shall be required to have a kit consisting of the following materials, for a course as a barber technician after fifty (50) hours of enrollment in a barber technician program:
  - (a) One (1) pair snippers;
  - (b) Three (3) orangewood sticks:
  - (c) One (1) box of emery boards;
  - (d) One (1) cuticle pusher:
  - (e) One (1) finger bowl:
  - (f) One (1) sanitizable file;
  - (g) One (1) nail brush;
  - (h) One (1) cape chair cloth;
  - (i) One (1) color applicator bottle or color bowl and brush;
  - (j) One (1) Four (4) all-purpose combs;
  - (k) One (1) shampoo cape;
  - (I) Six (6) duckbill Cclips;
  - (m) One (1) textbook Twelve (12) butterfly clips;
  - (n) One (1) workbook One (1) theory book (electronic or hard copy);
  - (o) Facial cream One (1) workbook (electronic or hard copy);
  - (p) One (1) set of instructions to access online laws and rules; and
  - (q) One (1) hand form and holder or two (2) fingers and holder.
- (3) It shall be the responsibility of the student to maintain all materials in the kits.
- (4) Each school shall have rubber disposable gloves and safety goggles available to all students.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-3-123 and 62-3-128.

## Chapter 0440-01 Licensing

### Amendments

The Table of Contents for Chapter 0440-01 is amended by redesignating 0440-01-.09 "Examination Passing Scores and School Attendance Ratio" as "Examinations and School Attendance Ratio" and by redesignating 0440-01-.11 "Teacher Training Programs" as "Instructor-training Programs" so that, as amended, the Table of Contents shall read:

#### **Table of Contents**

0440-0101 Requirements for School License	0440-0111 <del>Teacher</del> <u>Instructor</u> - <u>T</u> training Programs
0440-0102 Change of School Ownership and	0440-0112 Demonstrations
Relocation	0440-0113 Fees
0440-0103 Curriculum	0440-0114 Civil Penalties
0440-0104 High School Equivalents	0440-0115 Practice by Instructor
0440-0105 Requirements for Schools	0440-0116 Schools Providing Limited Instruction
0440-0106 Enrollment of Students	0440-0117 Communication with the Board
0440-0107 Student Kits	0440-0118 Expedited Licensing for Certain Military
0440-0108 Expiration of School Registration Renewal	Personnel and Spouses
0440-0109 Examinations Passing Scores and School	0440-0119 Mobile Shops
Attendance Ratio	
0440-0110 Original License Fee	

Rule 0440-01-.01 Requirements for School License is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) The Board of Cosmetology and Barbering Examiners (hereinafter the "Board") will not issue, reissue, or renew a license to operate a school of cosmetology unless the school is equipped with all workable equipment consisting of at least:
  - (a) One (1) work station with adjustable chair per student working on the clinic floor with a minimum of twenty (20) fifteen (15) stations;
  - (b) Five (5) shampoo basins, with hot and cold running water, adequately spaced;
  - (c) Five (5) manicure tables stations;
  - (d) A minimum of five (5) working floor-based hooded dryers;
  - (e) Ten (10) mannequins One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station;
  - (f) One (1) straight chair in the theory classroom for each student attending the class;
  - (g) One (1) wet sterilizer disinfectant at each student work station;
  - (h) One (1) enclosed <u>and labeled</u> storage area for clean towels;
  - (i) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (j) One (1) covered trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (k) Dry sterilizer at each student work station One (1) enclosed dry sanitary compartment at each student work station;
  - (I) Ultra violet One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;

- (m) Time sheet/time clock; and
- (n) Access to a minimum of two (2) one (1) working restrooms.; and
- (o) One (1) blood exposure kit.
- (2) A school of cosmetology offering an aesthetics curriculum shall be equipped with all workable equipment consisting of at least:
  - (a) Sufficient facial steamers;
  - (b) One (1) suction machine or a Level I or II Microdermabrasion machine;
  - (c) One (1) light based device with the manufacturer's intended commercial use statement for hair removal and skin enhancement of face and body;
  - (d) Sufficient protective eyewear (glasses) recommended by the manufacturer of laser/light devices for each student and instructor;
  - (e) One (1) LED light with the manufacturers intended use statement for skin improvement;
  - (f) One (1) wax depilatory heater pot with the manufacturer's intended commercial use statement;
  - (g) One (1) hands free magnifying lamp;
  - (h) One (1) hot towel cabinet;
  - (i) One (1) reclining facial chair/table;
  - (j) One (1) electric brushing machine or sonic brushing device;
  - (k) One (1) sink which provides hot and cold running water other than the bathroom;
  - (I) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;
  - (m) One (1) covered trash container maintained in a sanitary condition at each teaching station;
  - (n) Sufficient work area for each student;
  - (o) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (p) One (1) wet sterilizer disinfectant;
  - (q) One (1) professional makeup station representing a color matrix palette of makeup products;
  - (r) Sufficient disposable applicators for makeup product application;
  - (s) One (1) skin care product kit containing two (2) products from each category: cleansers, astringent and toners, moisturizer, problem prep, and protective products;
  - (t) One (1) Autoclave instrument sanitizer;
  - (u) One (1) <u>labeled</u> sharps container for biohazard material removal <u>at each station; and</u>
  - (v) One (1) blood spill exposure kit; and.
  - (w) All containers for cosmetic products must be properly labeled.

- (3) A school of aesthetics shall be equipped with all workable equipment consisting of at least:
  - (a) One (1) work station per student working on the clinic floor;
  - (b) One (1) straight chair in the theory classroom for each student attending class;
  - (c) One (1) wet disinfectant at each student work station;
  - (d) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
  - (e) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (f) One (1) covered trash container maintained in a sanitary condition at each student work station;
  - (g) One (1) enclosed dry sanitary compartment at each student work station;
  - (h) Time sheet/time clock;
  - (i) A minimum of one (1) working restroom;
  - (j) One (1) blood exposure kit;
  - (k) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station;
  - (I) Sufficient facial steamers;
  - (m) One (1) suction machine or a Level I or II Microdermabrasion machine;
  - (n) One (1) light based device with the manufacturer's intended commercial use statement for hair removal and skin enhancement of face and body;
  - (o) Sufficient protective eyewear (glasses) recommended by the manufacturer of laser/light devices for each student and instructor;
  - (p) One (1) LED light with the manufacturers' intended use statement for skin improvement;
  - (q) One (1) wax depilatory heater pot with the manufacturer's intended commercial use statement:
  - (r) One (1) hands free magnifying lamp;
  - (s) One (1) hot towel cabinet;
  - (t) One (1) reclining facial chair/table;
  - (u) One (1) electric brushing machine or sonic brushing device;
  - (v) One (1) sink which provides hot and cold running water other than the bathroom;
  - (w) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;
  - One (1) professional makeup station representing a color matrix palette of makeup products;
  - (y) One (1) Autoclave instrument sanitizer;
  - (z) One (1) skin care product kit containing two (2) products from each category: cleansers, astringent and toners, moisturizer, problem prep, and protective products; and
  - (aa) Sufficient disposable applicators for product application.

- (4) A school of natural hair styling shall be equipped with all workable equipment consisting of at least:
  - (a) One (1) work station with adjustable chair per student working on the clinic floor;
  - (b) One (1) straight chair in the theory classroom for each student attending class;
  - (c) Two (2) shampoo bowls with hot and cold running water and chairs in work area;
  - (d) Two (2) working hooded dryers;
  - (e) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
  - (f) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (g) One (1) covered and labeled trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (h) One (1) dry sanitary compartment at each student work station;
  - (i) One (1) wet disinfectant;
  - (j) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;
  - (k) One (1) blood exposure kit;
  - (I) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station;
  - (m) A minimum of one (1) working restroom; and
  - (n) A time sheet/time clock.
- (5) A school of manicuring shall be equipped with all workable equipment consisting of at least:
  - (a) One (1) manicure table with stool or chair per student working on the clinic floor;
  - (b) One (1) straight chair in the theory classroom for each student attending the class;
  - (c) One (1) dry sanitary compartment at each student work station;
  - (d) One (1) wet disinfectant;
  - (e) One (1) ultraviolet sanitizer;
  - (f) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels:
  - (g) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (h) One (1) covered and labeled trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (i) One (1) sink which provides hot and cold running water in the clinic floor area, excluding the bathroom;
  - (j) One (1) finger bowl per table;
  - (k) One (1) covered container per table for cotton balls and swabs;
  - (I) One (1) foot bath per student working on the clinic floor;
  - (m) One (1) blood exposure kit;

- (n) One (1) labeled sharps container at each student work station for biohazard material removal;
- (o) A minimum of one (1) working restroom;
- (p) A sign prominently posted stating that the customer has the right not to have drills used on his or her nails; and
- (q) A time sheet/time clock.
- (6) Requirements for All Schools Licensed Under T.C.A. Title 62, Chapter 4
  - (a) All schools shall have a sign prominently posted stating that all services are performed by students; and
  - (b) All containers for cosmetic and any other products must be properly labeled.
- (7) The Board shall have the authority to approve a school without a restroom facility located therein if the school is located within a mall, strip shopping center, or other commercial property and the school owner can demonstrate shared public restroom facilities are standard for the location.
- (3)(8) Requirements for Instructional Floor Space
  - (a) "Instructional floor space" means the floor space of a school designated primarily for the instruction of students and shall not include such spaces as storage, restrooms, utility rooms, passageways, or inhabited administrative spaces such as reception areas, offices and break areas.
  - (b) A school of cosmetology offering a manicuring curriculum shall also be equipped with adequate instructional floor space for manicuring so as not to compromise or disrupt the teaching of cosmetology curriculum prescribed in Rule 0440-01-.03.
  - (c) A school of cosmetology offering a natural hair styling curriculum shall also be equipped with adequate instructional floor space for natural hair styling so as to not compromise or disrupt the teaching of cosmetology curriculum prescribed in Rule 0440-01-.03.
  - (d) A school of cosmetology offering an aesthetics curriculum shall also be equipped with adequate instructional floor space for aesthetics so as not to compromise or disrupt the teaching of cosmetology curriculum prescribed in Rule 0440-01-.03.

### (4)(9) Floor Plan

- (a) A proposed floor plan must be submitted to and approved by the Board before:
  - 1. Issuance of a license to operate a new school of cosmetology;
  - 2. Issuance of a license to operate a school of cosmetology whose ownership has changed; or
  - 3. Reissuance of a license to operate a relocated school of cosmetology:
- (b) For all schools other than specialized schools as described in subparagraph (4)(c), below, the floor plan shall provide for, and the school shall contain, at least 2200 two thousand two hundred square feet (2200 sq. ft.) of instructional floor space, including an enclosed classroom for theory instruction.
- (c) The floor plan for a specialized school solely offering a course of study in aesthetics, manicuring, or natural hair styling shall provide for, and the school shall contain, adequate floor space as determined by the Board.

(5)(10) New School

- (a) A new school shall be closed to the public for ninety (90) days after the issuance of its license unless the school has students enrolled with the required two hundred (200) or more hours to perform cosmetology services on the public.
- (b) A branch school shall be considered a new school unless the school has students enrolled with the required two hundred (200) or more hours to perform cosmetology services on the public.
- (c) If an existing school requires an expansion campus facility, the facility must be located within two (2) miles of the main campus.
- (d) A specialized school solely offering a course of study in aesthetics, manicuring, or natural hair styling shall have a minimum of five (5) students.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-4-105(e), 62-4-116, 62-4-117, 62-4-120, 62-4-120(f), and 62-4-122, and 62-4-122(g)(2).

0440-01-.02 Change of School Ownership and Relocation is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) The Board shall be notified within ten (10) days of the effective date of any change in ownership or name of a school of cosmetology.
- (2) For purposes of Tenn. Code Ann. § 62-4-120(e) and this paragraph, any substantial addition to a school shall be deemed to constitute a relocation thereof; Substantial changes to a school's physical location shall be deemed a relocation. A new license for a relocated school shall be required following an inspection. Substantial changes include, but are not limited to, a significant increase or reduction in a school's square footage as well as changes to the floor plan, physical walls, and entry doors. The Board shall be notified in writing of any substantial changes no less than thirty (30) days prior to the changes being made.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-4-105(e) and 62-4-120.

Rule 0440-01-.07 Student Kits is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) Each student, with school assistance, shall be required to have a kit consisting of the following materials, for a course in cosmetology after two hundred (200) hours of enrollment in a cosmetology program.:
  - (a) Six (6) brushes;
  - (b) Four (4) combs;
  - (c) One (1) razor and one (1) pair of cutting shears and thinning shears and a razor;
  - (d) One (1) box of roller clips;
  - (e) One (1) box of clips;
  - (f) Three (3) Twelve (12) butterfly clips;
  - (g) Six (6) duckbill clips;
  - (h) One (1) theory book (electronic or hard copy);
  - (i) One (1) workbook (electronic or hard copy);
  - (j) Three (3) orangewood sticks:
  - (k) One (1) box of emery boards;

- (I) One (1) cuticle pusher;
- (m) One (1) finger bowl;
- (n) One (1) styling cape:
- (o) One (1) file One (1) shampoo cape;
- (p) One (1) nail brush;
- (q) One (1) mannequin;
- (r) One (1) polish kit odorless acrylic kit;
- (s) Cosmetology law book One (1) sanitizable file;
- (t) Disposable gloves One (1) blow dryer;
- (u) Disposable caps One (1) curling iron;
- (v) <u>Disposable gloves</u>;
- (w) Disposable caps;
- (x) One (1) hand form and holder or two (2) fingers and holder;
- (y) One (1) set of instructions to access online laws and rules;
- (z) Twelve (12) per rods;
- (aa) Two (2) color bowls; and
- (bb) Two (2) color brushes.
- (2) Each student, with school assistance, shall be required to have a kit consisting of the following materials, for a course in manicuring after one hundred (100) hours of enrollment in a manicuring program:
  - (a) One (1) theory book (electronic or hard copy);
  - (b) One (1) workbook (electronic or hard copy);
  - (c) One (1) pair nippers;
  - (d) Three (3) orangewood sticks;
  - (e) One (1) box of emery boards;
  - (f) One (1) cuticle pusher;
  - (g) One (1) finger bowl;
  - (h) One (1) sanitizable file;
  - (i) One (1) nail brush;
  - (j) One (1) polish kit;
  - (k) One (1) hand form and holder:
  - (I) One (1) wet sanitizer disinfectant;

- (m) One (1) tweezer;
- (n) One (1) pair manicure scissors;
- (o) Nail glue;
- (p) Supplies for nail wraps;
- (q) Supplies for sculptured nails:
- (r) Goggles:
- (s) Cosmetology law book One (1) hand form and holder or two (2) fingers and holder;
- (t) One (1) odorless acrylic kit;
- (u) Disposable gloves; and
- (v) One (1) set of instructions to access online laws and rules.
- (3) Each student, with school assistance, shall be required to have a kit consisting of the following materials, for a course in aesthetics after one hundred fifty (150) hours of enrollment in an aesthetics program:
  - (a) One (1) theory book (electronic or hard copy);
  - (b) One (1) workbook (electronic or hard copy);
  - (c) One (1) package cotton swabs:
  - (d) One (1) roll of cotton;
  - (e) One (1) box of tissues;
  - (f) Three (3) spatulas:
  - (g) Two (2) sterilizer jars;
  - (h) One (1) tweezer:
  - (i) One (1) make-up kit;
  - (j) One (1) set of make-up brushes;
  - (k) Two (2) head covers;
  - (I) One (1) set of skin care treatment products to include one (1) container each: cleansing cream, astringent, massage cream, night cream, moisturizer, all-purpose masque;
  - (m) Three (3) towels Two (2) disposable bags;
  - (n) One (1) shoulder cape;
  - (o) One (1) bottle alcohol;
  - (p) One (1) pair rubber disposable gloves:
  - (q) Two (2) cups;
  - (r) Two (2) small bowls; and

- (s) Two (2) disposable bags One (1) set of instructions to access online laws and rules.
- (t) Cosmetology law book
- (4) Each student, with school assistance, shall be required to have a kit consisting of the following materials, for a course in natural hair styling after fifty (50) hours of enrollment in a natural hair styling program:
  - (a) One (1) theory book (electronic or hard copy);
  - (b) One (1) workbook (electronic or hard copy);
  - (c) Two (2) mannequins (ethnic hair);
  - (d) One (1) bale of hair, ½ pound or more Two (2) bags of braiding hair;
  - (e) Four (4) combs Two (2) bags of kinky textured hair;
  - (f) One (1) cape (not plastic) One (1) pack of track hair;
  - (g) One (1) plastic pick Four (4) all-purpose combs;
  - (h) Pillow One (1) styling cape;
  - (i) Oil sheen or holding spray One (1) shampoo cape;
  - (j) Scissors (to cut synthetic hair) One (1) plastic pick;
  - (k) Stool Two (2) rat tail combs;
  - (I) Thread One (1) barber comb;
  - (m) Needle (tapestry) One (1) detangle comb;
  - (n) Cosmetology law book One (1) pair scissors;
  - (o) Thread;
  - (p) One (1) hair weaving needle; and
  - (q) One (1) set of instructions to access online laws and rules.
- (5) It shall be the responsibility of the student to maintain all materials in the kits furnished pursuant to this rule.
- (6) Schools shall have rubber disposable gloves and safety goggles available to all students.

Authority: T.C.A. § 62-4-105(e).

Rule 0440-01-.11 Teacher Training Programs is amended by changing the heading to "Instructor-training Programs" and by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) An application for approval of <u>a teacher</u> <u>an instructor-</u>training program in cosmetology, aesthetics, manicuring, or natural hair styling shall include:
  - (a) A summary of the education and experience of each instructor for the program;
  - (b) The scheduled dates of the program; and
  - (c) The proposed curriculum of the program.

- (2) The applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Board that the teacher instructor training program submitted for approval will:
  - (a) Contain at least sixteen (16) hours of actual instruction;
  - (b) Emphasize teaching methodology for its entire duration;
  - (c) Restrict the size of classes sufficiently to ensure adequate attention to all participants;
  - (d) Proceed for not more than two (2) hours without a break;
  - (e) Prohibit demonstrations or presentations for commercial purposes in classrooms. Training programs may not sell, take orders, or in any way promote a product; and
  - (f) Conform to professional standards as determined by the Board. This can be determined by, but not limited to, the following: fraud, unprofessional, immoral or dishonorable conduct, a violation of T.C.A. §§ 62-4 et seq., or of any rules duly promulgated under this chapter, or failure to comply with a lawful order of the board.
- Any online, virtual or electronic instructor-training program shall further demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Board that the instructor-training program submitted for approval does not allow one to skip through content and meets at least one (1) of the following qualifications:
  - (a) Streamed or real-time presentation that allows the submission of questions, group chat, or solicits responses from licensees through surveys, multiple choice questions, etc.;
  - (b) Requires a unique login; or
  - (c) Monitors licensee participation and includes a testing component that requires a passing grade in order to complete the program.
- (3)(4) Promptly after the completion of a teacher an instructor-training program approved by the Board, the sponsor shall send to the Board a roster showing the names, social security number and I.D. number of the persons who attended the program and the number of hours that such persons completed.
- The sponsor shall provide an opportunity for the attendees to evaluate each class and the overall program. The original evaluations shall be forwarded to the office of the Board.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-4-105(e) and 62-4-114.

Rule 0440-01-.15 Practice By Instructor is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) Continuing Education
  - (a) An instructor shall complete at least sixteen (16) hours of actual instruction in order to obtain credit. An instructor shall deduct any time in which the instructor failed to attend the program from the amount of credit sought for attendance.
  - (a)(b) In order for a licensed instructor to obtain credit for taking a continuing education course in a state other than the State of Tennessee, the licensed instructor shall obtain the Board's approval before taking the course by submitting a written request for approval to the Board within thirty (30) sixty (60) days before the licensed instructor intends to take the course. Such written request must include a copy of the course's curriculum.
  - (b)(c) A licensed instructor shall submit a request for an extension of time in which to take his or her continuing education in writing to the Board along with proof showing good cause relative to illness or emergency prior to the expiration date of the instructor's license. to complete the instructor-training requirements in writing along with proof showing a

medical hardship, a death in the immediate family, or other emergency pursuant to T.C.A. § 62-4-114 prior to the expiration date of the instructor's license.

- An instructor may only practice or teach the discipline in which he or she is licensed. <a href="mailto:therefore">therefore</a>, an instructor may only obtain credit for an instructor-training program in the discipline in which he or she is licensed.
- (3) An instructor who is not granted an extension prior to the expiration date of the certificate of registration and who fails to obtain the required number of continuing education hours shall be denied renewal. The Executive Director shall have discretion to allow the instructor up to one hundred eighty (180) additional days to submit continuing education hours and renew the certificate of registration if a written request is made by the instructor within sixty (60) days following the expiration date of the certificate of registration and the instructor shows a causal connection between a medical illness and failure to obtain the continuing education hours or shows a death in the immediate family.
- If the instructor fails to make a written request within sixty (60) days of the expiration date of the certificate of registration, but makes the request within three hundred sixty-five (365) days following the expiration date of the certificate of registration or does not meet the criteria for Executive Director approval in paragraph (3), the Board shall have the discretion to allow the instructor up to one hundred eighty (180) additional days to submit continuing education hours if the instructor can demonstrate a medical illness, a death in the immediate family or other emergency pursuant to T.C.A. § 62-4-114.
- An instructor who fails to obtain the required number of continuing education hours prior to the expiration date appearing on the certificate of registration and is either not eligible for an extension pursuant to paragraphs (3) and (4) or not granted an extension shall not engage in any activity which requires an instructor's certificate of registration and shall be required to retake the instructor's examination, complete the continuing education hours, and pay any applicable fees in order for the certificate of registration to be reinstated.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-4-105(e), 62-4-108, and 62-4-114(a)(1) and (2).

### Chapter 0440-02 Sanitary Rules

#### Amendments

Rule 0440-02-.07 Equipment is amended by deleting the text of the rule and substituting the following so that as amended the rule shall read:

- (1) Every cosmetology shop shall be equipped with at least:
  - (a) One (1) shampoo bowl with hot and cold running water and chair in work area and chair;
  - (b) One (1) enclosed <u>and labeled</u> storage area for clean towels;
  - (c) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (d) One (1) covered and labeled trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (e) One (1) dry sterilizer, with fumigant, or sanitary compartment;
  - (f) One (1) wet sterilizer disinfectant;
  - (g) One (1) work station (standard size) for each operator;
  - (h) One (1) ultra violet ultraviolet sanitizer;
  - (i) One (1) blood spill exposure kit; and
  - (j) Adequate restroom facilities. A minimum of one (1) working restroom; and
  - (k) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station.
- (2) Every skin care shop shall be equipped with at least:
  - (a) One (1) sink which provides hot and cold running water in the work area, excluding the bathroom;
  - (b) One (1) hands free magnifying lamp;
  - (c) One (1) enclosed <u>and labeled</u> storage area for clean towels;
  - (d) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (e) One (1) covered and labeled trash container maintained in a sanitary condition:
  - (f) One (1) reclining facial chair/table;
  - (g) One (1) wet sterilizer disinfectant for the equipment used;
  - (h) One (1) ultra violet ultraviolet sanitizer;
  - (i) One (1) blood spill exposure kit;
  - (j) Adequate restroom facilities with hot and cold water A minimum of one (1) working restroom;
  - (k) One (1) sharps container for biohazard material removal <u>at each station</u>;
  - (I) One (1) electric hot towel cabin;
  - (m) One (1) facial steamer; and

- (n) One (1) wax depilatory heater pot with manufacturer's intended commercial use statement.
- (3) Every manicure shop shall be equipped with at least:
  - (a) One (1) manicure table with stool or chair, per manicurist;
  - (b) One (1) patron chair;
  - (c) One (1) wet sterilizer disinfectant for equipment used;
  - (d) One (1) ultra violet ultraviolet sanitizer for equipment used;
  - (e) One (1) e Enclosed and labeled storage area (s) for clean towels;
  - (f) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (g) One (1) covered and labeled trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (h) One (1) sink which provides hot and cold running water in the work area, excluding the bathroom;
  - (i) One (1) finger bowl per table;
  - (j) One (1) covered container per table for cotton balls and swabs;
  - (k) One (1) foot bath if pedicures are offered;
  - (I) One (1) blood spill exposure kit;
  - (m) Adequate restroom facilities A minimum of one (1) working restroom; and
  - (n) Sign prominently posted stating that the customer has the right not to have drills used on his or her nails-; and
  - (o) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station.
- (4) Every natural hair stylist shop shall be equipped with at least:
  - (a) One (1) shampoo bowl with hot and cold running water and chair in work area and chair;
  - (b) One (1) enclosed and labeled storage area for clean towels;
  - (c) One (1) covered and labeled container for soiled towels;
  - (d) One (1) covered and labeled trash container maintained in a sanitary condition;
  - (e) One (1) dry sterilizer, with fumigant, or sanitary compartment;
  - (f) One (1) wet sterilizer disinfectant;
  - (g) One (1) work station (standard size) for each operator;
  - (h) One (1) ultra violet ultraviolet sanitizer;
  - (i) One (1) blood spill exposure kit; and
  - (j) Adequate restroom facilities. A minimum of one (1) working restroom; and
  - (k) One (1) labeled sharps container for biohazard material removal at each station.

- (5) Every shop shall contain sufficient equipment to enable it to perform all services offered competently and efficiently.
  - (a) All equipment must be in working order.
  - (b) All containers for cosmetic and any other products must be properly labeled.
- (6) Residential shops must maintain a separate entrance without requiring passage through any portion of a private residence. Separate restroom facilities must be provided apart from the living quarters.
- (7) <u>Unless otherwise licensed as a mobile shop, A a cosmetology, skin care, natural hair stylist or manicure shop located in a mobile home or mobile unit will not be approved for a license unless it is placed on a permanent foundation or otherwise rendered immobile.</u>
- (8) A cosmetology, skin care, natural hair stylist or manicure shop must have a separate entrance from any other business except in malls, strip shopping centers, or other commercial property approved by the Board.
- (9) The Board shall have the authority to approve a shop without a restroom facility located therein if the shop is located within a mall, strip shopping center, or other commercial property and the shop owner can demonstrate shared public restroom facilities are standard for the location.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 62-4-105(e) and 62-4-125.

\* If a roll-call vote was necessary, the vote by the Agency on these rulemaking hearing rules was as follows: **Board Member** No **Abstain Absent** Signature Aye (if required) Ron R. Gillihan II Χ Kelly Barger Χ Judy McAllister X Patricia J. Χ Richmond Mona Sappenfield Χ Frank Gambuzza Χ X Amy Tanksley Anita Charlton Χ Χ Yvette Granger Susan Witcher Χ Rebecca Russell Χ Χ Janie Ross N/A N/A N/A N/A Vacant N/A Vacant N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A I certify that this is an accurate and complete copy of rulemaking hearing rules, lawfully promulgated and adopted by the <u>Tennessee Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners</u> (board/commission/other authority) on October 5, 2020 (mm/dd/yyyy), and is in compliance with the provisions of T.C.A. § 4-5-222. I further certify the following: Notice of Rulemaking Hearing filed with the Department of State on: August 14-2020 Rulemaking Hearing(s) Conducted on: (add more dates). October 5, 2020 Date: November 6, 2020 Signature: Name of Officer: Hugh Cross Title of Officer: Assistant General Counsel Agency/Board/Commission: Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners, Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards Rule Chapter Number(s): 0200-01, 0440-01, 0440-02 All rulemaking hearing rules provided for herein have been examined by the Attorney General and Reporter of the State of Tennessee and are approved as to legality pursuant to the provisions of the Administrative Procedures Act, Tennessee Code Annotated, Title 4, Chapter 5. Herbert H. Slatery III

Attorney General and Reporter

Date

# **Department of State Use Only**

Filed with the Department of State on: _	
Effective on: _	
_	
	Tre Hargett
	Secretary of State

## **Public Hearing Comments**

One copy of a document that satisfies T.C.A. § 4-5-222 must accompany the filing.

The Tennessee Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners has received no comments on the proposed rules.

### **Regulatory Flexibility Addendum**

Pursuant to T.C.A. §§ 4-5-401 through 4-5-404, prior to initiating the rule making process, all agencies shall conduct a review of whether a proposed rule or rule affects small business.

The proposed rules do not overlap, duplicate, or conflict with other federal, state, and local governmental rules. These rules will also result in greater efficiency and consumer protection, and the Board sees minimal impact to consumers with the promulgation of the proposed rules. Further, these rules are a positive move as they provide clarification on a number of substantive issues such as the equipment requirements, student definitions, mobile shop requirements, relocation requirements, and teacher training program requirements, as well as remove costly requirements that the Board believes are unnecessary while adding inexpensive requirements to ensure sanitation thereby protecting consumers. While the various amendments may result in some cost for compliance, the Board knows of no other less burdensome, less intrusive, or less costly alternative methods of achieving the purpose and objectives of the proposed rules. Finally, these amendments are substantially similar to other states with rules and regulations over the cosmetology and barber industry, thus making Tennessee rules consistent with other jurisdictions and allowing better license portability for current and future licensees.

## **Impact on Local Governments**

Pursuant to T.C.A. §§ 4-5-220 and 4-5-228 "any rule proposed to be promulgated shall state in a simple declarative sentence, without additional comments on the merits of the policy of the rules or regulation, whether the rule or regulation may have a projected impact on local governments." (See Public Chapter Number 1070 (<a href="http://publications.tnsosfiles.com/acts/106/pub/pc1070.pdf">http://publications.tnsosfiles.com/acts/106/pub/pc1070.pdf</a>) of the 2010 Session of the General Assembly.)

The Tennessee Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners foresees no impact on local governments.

### **Additional Information Required by Joint Government Operations Committee**

All agencies, upon filing a rule, must also submit the following pursuant to T.C.A. § 4-5-226(i)(1).

(A) A brief summary of the rule and a description of all relevant changes in previous regulations effectuated by such rule:

The proposed rules were approved by the Board on October 1, 2018. These rules amend the equipment requirements pertaining to shops, schools, student kits, and the residential barber kit, clarify the definition of both full-time and part-time students, reduce the hours required under the barber instructor training program curriculum as required by statute, implement a ten (10) day notification requirement related to any change in ownership under the barbering discipline, clarify when substantial changes are deemed a relocation for compliance purposes, provide guidelines for online, virtual, or electronic teacher training programs, and detail the procedures related to instructors receiving credit for teacher training programs.

**(B)** A citation to and brief description of any federal law or regulation or any state law or regulation mandating promulgation of such rule or establishing guidelines relevant thereto;

Revisions to T.C.A. §62-3-124 (a) required a reduction of the number of barber instructor hours from four hundred fifty (450) to three hundred (300) in this set of rules. There is no known state or federal law or regulation mandating promulgation of the remainder of the changes proposed in these rules.

**(C)** Identification of persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities most directly affected by this rule, and whether those persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities urge adoption or rejection of this rule;

The proposed rules will affect current licensees and future applications. We believe all affected will approve the adoption of these rules, because the proposed rules will benefit all industry members. Further, the Board proposed these changes based on discussion by associations of the cosmetology and barber industry.

(D) Identification of any opinions of the attorney general and reporter or any judicial ruling that directly relates to the rule or the necessity to promulgate the rule;

There are no known opinions of the Attorney General and Reporter or any judicial ruling that relates directly to these proposed rules.

(E) An estimate of the probable increase or decrease in state and local government revenues and expenditures, if any, resulting from the promulgation of this rule, and assumptions and reasoning upon which the estimate is based. An agency shall not state that the fiscal impact is minimal if the fiscal impact is more than two percent (2%) of the agency's annual budget or five hundred thousand dollars (\$500,000), whichever is less;

The Board foresees minimal impact to state and local government revenues and expenditures.

**(F)** Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives, possessing substantial knowledge and understanding of the rule;

Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners
Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards
Hugh Cross, Assistant General Counsel
500 James Robertson Parkway
(615) 741-3072
Hugh.Cross@TN.gov

Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners
Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards
Roxana Gumucio, Executive Director
500 James Robertson Parkway
(615) 532-7081
Roxana.Gumucio@TN.gov

SS-7039 (March 2020) 31 RDA 1693

**(G)** Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives who will explain the rule at a scheduled meeting of the committees;

Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners

Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards

Hugh Cross, Assistant General Counsel

500 James Robertson Parkway

(615) 741-3072

Hugh.Cross@TN.gov

Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners

Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards

Roxana Gumucio, Executive Director

500 James Robertson Parkway

(615) 532-7081

Roxana.Gumucio@TN.gov

**(H)** Office address, telephone number, and email address of the agency representative or representatives who will explain the rule at a scheduled meeting of the committees; and

Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners

Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards

Hugh Cross, Assistant General Counsel

500 James Robertson Parkway

(615) 741-3072

Hugh.Cross@TN.gov

Board of Cosmetology & Barber Examiners

Department of Commerce & Insurance, Division of Regulatory Boards

Roxana Gumucio, Executive Director

500 James Robertson Parkway

(615) 532-7081

Roxana.Gumucio@TN.gov

(I) Any additional information relevant to the rule proposed for continuation that the committee requests.

There is no additional information relevant to the rule proposed for continuation that the committee requests.